Exhibit "D"

BY-LAWS OF

BRIDLEWOOD RANCHES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

A Florida Corporation Not For Profit

These are the By-Laws of BRIDLEWOOD RANCHES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. (the "Association"), a Florida corporation not for profit formed for the purpose stated in its Articles of Incorporation (the "Articles) and in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements of BRIDLEWOOD RANCHES, recorded in Official Record Book ____ at Page ____, Public Records of Okeechobee, County, Florida, as amended or joined (the "Declaration").

Article I. General Provisions.

- 1.1 Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, all terms used in these By-Laws shall have the same meaning as are attributed to them in the Articles and the Declaration.
- 1.2 Principal Office. The principal office of the Association shall be at such place as the Board may determine from time to time.
 - 1.3 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.
- 1.4 Seal. The seal of the Association shall have inscribed upon it the name of the Association, the year of its incorporation and the words "Corporation Not-for-Profit." The seal may be used by causing it, or a facsimile thereof, to be impressed, affixed or otherwise reproduced upon any instrument or document executed in the name of the Association.
- 1.5 Inspection of Books and Records. The books and records of the Association shall be open to inspection by all Owners of their authorized representatives, and all holders, insurers or guarantors of any first mortgage encumbering a Parcel, upon written request and for a reasonable purpose, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances. Such records of the Association shall include current copies of the Declaration, Articles and By-Laws, and any amendments thereto, any contracts entered into by the Association, and the books, records and financial statements of the Association. The Association shall make available to prospective purchasers of Parcels current copies of the Declaration, Articles, and By-Laws, and the most recent annual financial statement of the Association.

Article II. Membership

- 2.1 Qualification. Pursuant to the Articles, all of the record owners of Parcels shall be members of the Association.
- 2.2 Changes in Membership. The transfer of the ownership of any Parcel, either voluntarily or by operation of law, shall automatically terminate the membership of the prior Owner, and the transferee or new Owner shall automatically become a Member of the Association. It shall be the responsibility of any such transferor an transferee of a Parcel to notify the Association of any change in the ownership of any Parcel, and the corresponding change in any membership, by delivering to the Association a copy of the deed or other instrument of conveyance which establishes a transfer of ownership. In the absence of such notification, the Association shall not be obligated to recognize any change in Membership or ownership of a Parcel for purposes or notice, voting, Assessments, or for any other purpose.
- 2.3 Member Register. The secretary of the Association shall maintain a register showing the names and addresses of the Member of the Association. It shall be the obligation of each Member of the Association, to advise the secretary of any change of address of the Member, or of the change of ownership of the Member's Parcel.

Article III. Membership Voting

- 3.1 Voting Rights. There shall be one vote for each Parcel. In the event any Parcel is owned by more than one person, or is owned by other than an individual, the vote for such Parcel shall be cast as provided in paragraph 3.3, and votes shall not be divisible. In the event any Member owns more than one Parcel, the member shall be entitled to one vote for each Parcel.
- 3.2 Majority Vote and Quorum Requirements. The acts approved by a majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be binding upon all Members and Owners for all purposes, except where otherwise provided by law, in the Declaration, in the Articles, or in these By-Laws, Unless otherwise provided, at any regular or special meeting, the presence in person or by proxy of persons entitled to cast the votes for thirty percent (30%) of the Parcels shall constitute a quorum.
- 3.3.1 Determination as to Voting Rights. In the event any Parcel is owned by one person, his right to cast the vote for the Parcel shall be established by the record title to his Parcel.
- 3.3.2 In the event any Parcel is owned by more than one person or by an entity, the vote for the Parcel may be cast at any meeting by any co-owner of the Parcel; provided, however, that in the event a dispute arises between the co-owners as to how the vote for the Parcel shall be cast, or in the event co-owners are unable to concur in their decision upon any subject requiring a vote, they shall lose their right to cast the vote for the Parcel on the matter being voted upon at a meeting, but their Membership shall be counted for purposes of determining the existence of a quorum. For purposes of this paragraph, the principals or partners of any entity (other than a corporation), owning a Parcel shall be deemed co-owners of the Parcel, and the directors and officers of a corporation owning a Parcel shall be deemed co-owners of the Parcel.
- 3.3.3 Proxies. Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of the Members, or to express consent or dissent without a meeting, may authorize another person or persons to act on the Member's behalf by a proxy signed by such Member or his attorney-in-fact. Any proxy shall be delivered to the secretary of the meeting at or prior to the time designated in the order of business for delivering proxies. Any proxy shall be effective only for the specific meeting for which originally given and any lawfully adjourned meetings thereof. In no event shall any proxy be valid for a period longer than ninety (90) days after the date of the first meeting for which it was given. Every proxy shall be revocable at any time at the pleasure of the Member voting by proxy, and the name of the person authorized to vote the proxy for him. Every proxy shall contain the date, time, and place of the meeting for which the proxy is given, and if a limited proxy, shall set forth those items which the proxy holder may vote, and the manner in which the vote is to be cast.

Article IV Membership Meetings.

- 4.1 Who May Attend. In the event any Parcel is owned by more than one person, all co-owners of the Parcel may attend any meeting of the Members. In the event any Parcel is owned by a corporation, any director or officer of the corporation may attend any meeting of the Members. However, the vote for any Parcel shall be cast in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 3 of these By-Laws. Institutional Lenders have the right to attend all Members meetings.
- 4.2 Place. All meetings of the Members shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other place and at such time as shall be designated by the Board and stated in the notice of meeting.
- 4.3 Notices. Written notices stating the place, day and hour of any meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given by first-class mail or personal delivery to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting not less than 10 nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by first-class mail, by or at the direction of the president, the secretary or the officer or persons calling the meeting. If mailed such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the Member at his address as it appears in the records of the Association, with postage prepaid. For the purpose of determining Members entitled to notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of the Members of the Association, or in order to make a determination of the Members for any other purpose, the Board shall be entitled

to rely upon the Member register as same exists ten days prior to the giving of the notice of any meeting, and the Board shall not be required to take into account any changes in Membership occurring after that date but may, in their sole and absolute discretion, do so. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Parcel is owned by more than one person or by an entity, only one notice shall be required to be given with respect to the Parcel which may be given to any coowner as defined in Paragraph 3.3.2 of these By-Laws. Notice to any Member or co-owner shall be sent to the address of the Parcel of such Member or co-owner, unless the Parcel Owner(s) of the Parcel otherwise request.

- 4.4 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given to any Member under the provisions of the Articles or these By-Laws, or as otherwise provided by law, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance of a Member at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the Member objects at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- 4.5 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting for the purpose of electing directors and transacting any other business shall be held once in each twelve month period at a time and place to be determined by he Board and as is contained in the notice of such meeting.
- 4.6 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called at any time by any director, the president, or at the request, in writing, by not less than 25% of the Members, or as otherwise provided by law. Such request shall state the purpose of the proposed meeting. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the subjects stated in the notice of meeting. Notice of any special meeting shall be given by the secretary, or other officer of the Association, to all of the Members within thirty (30) days after the same is duly called, and the meeting shall be held within forty-five (45) days after same is duly called.
- 4.7 Adjournments. Any meeting may be adjourned or continued by a majority vote of the Members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, or if no Member entitled to vote is present, then any officer of the Association may adjourn the meeting from time to time. If any meeting is adjourned or continued to another time or place, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of the adjourned meeting, if the time and place to which the meeting is adjourned are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken, and any business may be transacted at the adjourned meeting that might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the time and place to which the meeting is adjourned are announced at a meeting at which the adjournment is taken, notice of the adjourned meeting may be given to Members not present at the original meeting, without giving notice to the Members which were present at the meeting.
- 4.8 Organization. At each meeting of the Members, the president, the vice president, or any person chosen by a majority of the Members present, in that order, shall act as chairman of the meeting. The secretary, or in his absence or inability to act, any person appointed by the chairman of the meeting, shall act as secretary of the meeting.
 - 4.9 Order of Business. The order of business at the annual meetings of the Members shall be:
 - (a) Determination of chairman of meeting;
 - (b) Calling of the roll and certifying of proxies;
 - (c) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
 - (d) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;
 - (e) Reports of directors, officers or committees;
 - (f) Appointment of inspectors of election;
 - (g) Determination of number of directors;
 - (h) Election of directors;
 - (I) Unfinished business;
 - (i) New business; and
 - (k) Adjournment.
 - 4.10 Minutes. The minutes of all meetings of the Members shall be kept in a book available for inspection

by the Members or their authorized representatives, and the directors, at any reasonable time upon prior written notice and for a reasonable purpose. The Association shall retain these minutes for a period of not less than seven years.

4.11 Actions Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the Members of the Association, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice, and without a vote of a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the Members having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all Members entitled to vote thereon were present and voted. Within ten days after obtaining such authorization by written consent, notice of the authorization shall be given to those Members who have not consented in writing. If a Parcel is owned by more than one person or by corporation, the consent for each Parcel need only be signed by one person who would be entitled to cast the vote for the Parcel as co-owner pursuant to Paragraph 3.3.2 of these By-Laws.

Article V. Directors

- 5.1 The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of an odd number of not less than three (3) directors. So long as the Declarant is entitled to appoint the directors pursuant to the Articles, the number of directors will be determined, and may be changed from time to time, by the Declarant by written notice of the Board. After the Declarant is no longer entitled to appoint any director, the number of directors may be changed (I) by the then existing Board, or (ii) by the Members at the meeting prior to the election of directors. In any event there shall always be an odd number of directors.
- 5.2 Election of Directors by Members. Election of directors to be elected by the Members of the Association shall be conducted in the following manner:
 - 5.2.1 Within ninety (90) days after the Members other than the Declarant are entitled to elect any directors, as provided in the Articles, the Association shall call, and give not less than thirty (30) days nor more than forty-five (45) days notice of, special meeting of the Members to elect any directors the Members are then entitled to elect, or to replace the appropriate number of directors previously appointed by the Declarant. Such special meeting may be called and the notice given by any Member if the Association fails to do so. At such special meeting the Members shall be required to elect any directors which they are entitled to elect, and if they fail to do so any directors appointed by Declarant which would have been replaced by any directors elected by the Members may resign without further liability or obligation to the Association.
 - 5.2.2 Except as provided above, the Members shall elect directors at the annual Members' meetings.
 - 5.2.3 Prior to any special or annual meeting at which directors are to be elected by the Members, the existing Board may appoint a nominating committee, which committee shall nominate one person for each director to be elected by the Members, on the basis that the number of directors to serve on the Board will not be altered by the Members at the Members meeting. Nominations for additional directorships created at the meeting shall be made from the floor, and other nominations may be made from the floor.
 - 5.2.4 The election of directors shall be by ballot (unless dispensed with by unanimous consent) and by a plurality of the votes cast, each Member voting being entitled to cast his votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled. There shall be no cumulative voting.
 - 5.3 Term of Office. All directors elected by the Members shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the Members and until their successors are duly elected, or until such director's death, resignation or removal, as hereinafter provided or as otherwise provided by statute or by the Articles.
 - 5.4 Annual Meeting. The newly elected Board shall meet for the purpose of organization, the election of Officers and the transaction of other business within ten (10) days of their election at such place and time as shall be fixed by the directors at the meeting at which they were elected, and no further notice of the annual meeting shall be necessary.

- 5.5 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors.
- 5.6 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by any director, or by the president, as any time.
- 5.7 Notice of Meetings. Notice of each meeting of the Board shall be given by the secretary, or by any other officer or director, which notice shall state the day, place and hour of the meeting. Notice of such meeting shall be delivered to each director either personally or by telephone or telegraph, at least 48 hours before the time such meeting is to be held, (except for emergency special meetings which may be held on lesser notice so longs as a quorum is present) or by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such director at his residence, or usual place of business, at least three days before the day on which such meeting is to be held. Notice of a meeting of the Board need not be given to any director who signs a waiver of notice either before or after the meeting Attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting and a waiver of any and all objections to the place of the meeting, the time of the meeting, or the manner in which it has been called or convened, except when a director states, at the beginning of the meeting, an objection to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in any notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.
- 5.8 Quorum and Manner of Acting. A majority of the directors determined in the manner provided in these By-Laws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business at a meeting by the Board. The act of the majority of the directors present, at a meeting in person or by telephone conference call, at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, unless the act of a greater number of directors is required by statute, the Declaration, the Articles, or by these By-Laws. A director may join by written concurrence in any action taken at a meeting of the Board but such concurrence may not be used for the purposes of creating a quorum.
- 5.9 Adjourned Meetings. A majority of the directors present at a meeting, whether or not a quorum exists, may adjourn any meeting of the Board to another place and time. Notice of any such adjourned meeting shall be given to the directors who are not present at the time of the adjournment, and, unless the time and place of the adjourned meeting are announced at the time of the adjournment, to the other directors. At any adjourned meeting, any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.
- 5.10 Presiding Officer. The presiding officer of the Board meetings shall be the Chairman of the Board if such an officer is elected; and if none, the president of the Association shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer the directors shall designate one of their Members to preside.
 - 5.11 Order of Business. The order of business at a Board meeting shall be:
 - (a) Calling of roll;
 - (b) Proof of due notice of meeting;
 - (c) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;
 - (d) Reports of officers and committees;
 - (e) Unfinished business;
 - (f) New Business; and
 - (g) Adjournment.
- 5.12 Minutes of Meetings. The minutes of all meetings of the Board shall be kept in a book available for inspection by the Members of the Association, or their authorized representatives, and the directors at any reasonable time. The Association shall retain these minutes for a period of not less than seven years.
- 5.13 Committees. The Board may, by resolution duly adopted, appoint committee. Any committee shall have and may exercise such powers, duties and functions as may be determined by the Board from time to time, which may include any powers which may be exercised by the Board and which are not prohibited by law from being exercised by a committee.

- 5.14 Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice of his resignation to another director or officer. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time when such resignation is to become effective is not specified therein, immediately upon its receipt, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make its effective.
- 5.15 Removal of Directors. Any director other than a director appointed by the Declarant may be removed with or without cause by the vote of a majority of the Members of the Association at a special meeting of the Members called by not less than ten percent of the Members of the Association expressly for that purpose. The vacancy on the Board caused by any such removal may be filled by the Members at such meeting or, if the Members shall fail to fill such vacancy, by the Board, as in the case of any other vacancy on the Board.
 - 5.16 Vacancies.
 - 5.16.1 Vacancies in the Board may be filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, and a director so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election or until his successor is duly elected, unless sooner displaced. If there are no directors, then a special election of the Members shall be called to elect the directors. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Declarant at all times shall have the right to appoint the maximum number of directors permitted by the Articles, and any vacancies on the Board may be filled by the Declarant to the extent that the number of directors then serving on the Board which were appointed by the Declarant is less than the number of directors the Declarant is then entitled to appoint.
 - 5.16.2 In the event the Association fails to fill vacancies on the Board sufficient to constitute a quorum in accordance with these By-Laws, any Owner may apply to the Circuit Court of the County for the appointment of a receiver to manage the affairs of the Association. At least thirty (30) days prior to applying to the Circuit Court, the Owner shall mail to the Association a notice describing the intended action giving the Association the opportunity to fill the vacancies. If during such time the Association fails to fill the vacancies, the Owner may proceed with the petition. If the vacancy is subsequently filled or a receiver is appointed, the Association shall be responsible for the salary of the receiver, court costs, and attorneys' fees. The receiver shall have all powers and duties of a duly constituted Member of the Board, and shall serve until the Association fills vacancies on the Board sufficient to constitute a quorum.

Directors Appointed by the Declarant.

- 5.17 Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Declarant shall have the right to appoint the maximum number of directors in accordance with the privileges granted to the Declarant pursuant to the Articles. All directors appointed by the Declarant shall serve at the pleasure of the Declarant, and the Declarant shall have the absolute right, at any time, and in its sole discretion, to remove any director appointed by it, and to replace such director with another person to serve on the Board. Replacement of any director appointed by the Declarant shall be made by written instrument delivered to any officer or any other director, which instrument shall specify the name of the person designated as successor director. The removal of any director and designation of his successor by the Declarant shall become effective immediately upon delivery of such written instrument by the Declarant or at such time as Declarant may specify in such written instrument.
- 5.18 Compensation. The directors shall not be entitled to any compensation for serving as Directors unless the Members approve such compensation, provided, however, the Association may reimburse any director for expenses incurred on behalf of the Association without approval of the Members.
- 5.19 Powers and Duties. The directors shall have the right to exercise all of the powers and duties of the Association, express or implied, existing under these By-Laws, the Articles, the Declaration, or as otherwise provided by statute or law.

Article VI. Officers.

- 6.1 Members and Qualifications. The officers of the Association shall include a president, a vice president, a treasurer and a secretary, all of whom shall be elected by the directors and may be preemptively removed from office with or without cause by the directors. Any person may hold two or more offices except that the president shall not also be the vice president or the secretary. The Board may, from time to time, elect such other officers and designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find to be appropriate to manage the affairs of the Association from time to time. Each officer shall hold office until the meeting of the Board following the next annual meeting of the Members, or until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified, or until his death, or until he shall have resigned, or until he shall have been removed, as provided by these By-Laws.
- 6.2 Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice of his resignation to any director or officer. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if there is not time specified therein, immediately upon its receipt; and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make such resignation effective.
- 6.3 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office, whether arising from death, resignation, removal or any other cause may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term of the office which shall be vacant in the manner prescribed in these By-Laws for the regular election or appointment of such office.
- 6.4 The President. The president shall be the chief executive officer of the association. He shall have all of the powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of the president of an association or corporation including but not limited to, the power to appoint committee from among the Members from time to time, as he may in his discretion deem appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.
- 6.5 The Vice President. The vice president shall, in the absence or disability of the president, exercise the powers and perform the duties of the president. He shall also assist the president generally and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the directors.
- 6.6 The Secretary. The secretary shall prepare and keep the minutes of all proceedings of the directors and the Members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the Members and directors and other notices required by law. He shall have custody of the seal of the Association and affix the same to instruments requiring a seal when duly executed. He shall keep the records of the Association, except those of the treasurer, and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of the secretary of an association, and as may be required by the directors or the president.
- 6.7 The Treasurer. The treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities, and evidences of indebtedness. He shall keep books of account for the Association in accordance with good accounting practices, which, together with substantiating papers, shall be made available to the Board for examination at reasonable times. He shall submit a Treasurer's Report to the Board at reasonable intervals and shall perform all other duties incident to the officer of treasurer. He shall collect all Assessments and shall report to the Board the status of collections as requested.
- 6.8 Compensation. The officers shall not be entitles to compensation unless the Members specifically vote to compensate them. However, neither this provision, nor the provision that directors will not be compensated unless otherwise determined by the Members, shall preclude the Board from employing a director or an officer as an employee of the Association and compensating such employee, nor shall they preclude the Association from contracting with a director for the management of property subject to the jurisdiction of the Association, or for the provision of services to the Association, and in either such event to pay such director a reasonable fee for such management or provision of services.

Article VII. Finances And Assessments.

7.1 Assessment Roll. The Association shall maintain an Assessment roll for each Parcel, designating the name and current mailing address of the Owner, the amount of each Assessment against such Owner, the dates and amounts in which the Assessments some due, the amounts paid upon the account of the Owner, and the balance due.

- 7.2 Depositories. The funds of the Association shall be deposited in such banks and depositories as may be determined and approved by appropriate resolutions of the Board from time to time. Funds shall be withdrawn only upon checks and demands for money signed by such officers, directors or other persons as may be designated by the Board. Fidelity bonds if required by the Declaration shall be required of all signatories.
- 7.3 Depositing of Payments. All sums collected by the Association from the Assessments may be deposited in a single fund or divided into more than one fund, as determined by the Board.
- 7.4 Accounting Records and Reports. The Association shall maintain accounting records according to generally accepted accounting practices. The records shall be open to inspection by Owners and Institutional Lenders or their authorized representatives, at reasonable times. The records shall include, but not be limited to, (a) a record of all receipts and expenditures, and (b) the Assessment roll of the Members referred to above. The Board may, and upon the vote of a majority of the Members shall, conduct a review of the accounts of the Association by a certified public accountant, and if such a review is made, a copy of the report shall be furnished to each Member, or their authorized representative, within fifteen days after same is completed.
- 7.5 Reserves. The budget of the Association shall provide for a reserve fund for the periodic maintenance, repair, and replacement of improvements to the Association Property and those other portions of the Property which the Association is obligated to maintain. Provisions for reserves may be deleted by the affirmative vote of Members holding no less than two thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the Membership.

Article VIII. Parliamentary Rules

Parliamentary Rules. Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the Association meetings when not in conflict with any Declaration, the Articles or these By-Laws.

Article IX Amendments.

Amendments. Except as otherwise provided, these By-Laws may be amended in the following manner:

- 9.1 Notice. Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is to be considered.
- 9.2 Initiation. A resolution to amend these By-Laws may be proposed either by any director, or by the vote of Members holding at least ten percent (10%) of the votes of the Association.
 - 9.3 Adoption of Amendments.
 - 9.3.1 A resolution for the adoption of the proposed amendment shall be adopted by a majority vote of all of the directors and not less than two thirds (2/3) vote of the entire Membership of the Association. Any amendment approved by the Members may provide that the Board may not further amend, modify or repeal such amendment.
 - 9.3.2 Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, so long as the Declarant is entitled to appoint the majority of the directors, the Declarant shall have the right to unilaterally amend these By-Laws without the joinder or approval of the Board or any Member, and so long as the Declarant owns any portion of the Property, no amendment to these By-Laws shall be effective without the written approval of the Declarant.
- 9.4 No amendment shall make any changes in the qualification for Membership nor in the voting rights or property rights of Members without approval by all of the Members and the joinder of all record owners of mortgages upon the Parcels. No amendment shall be made that is in conflict with the Declaration or the Articles. Prior to the closing of the sale of all Parcels by the Declarant, no amendment shall make any changes which would in any way affect any of the rights, privileges, powers or options herein provided in favor of, or reserved to, the Declarant, unless

the Declarant shall join in the execution of the amendment, including, but not limited to, any right of the Declarant to appoint directors.

- 9.5 No amendment to these By-Laws shall be made which discriminates against any Owner(s), or affects less than all of the Owners without the written approval of all of the Owners so discriminated against or affected.
- 9.6 Execution and Recording. No modification of, or amendment to the By-Laws shall be valid until recorded in the public records of Okeechobee County.

Article X. Miscellaneous.

- 10.1 Tenses and Genders. The use of any gender or any tense in these By-Laws shall refer to all genders or to all tenses, whenever the context so requires.
- 10.2 Partial Invalidity. Should any of the provisions hereof be void or become unenforceable at law or in equity, the remaining provisions shall, nevertheless, be and remain in full force and effect.
- 10.3 Conflicts. In the event of any conflict, the Declaration, the Articles, and these By-Laws shall govern, in that order.
- 10.4 Captions. Captions are inserted herein only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way are intended to or shall define, limit, or describe the scope of these By-Laws or the intent of any provisions hereof.
- 10.5 Waiver of Objections. The failure of the Board or any officers of the Association to comply with the terms and provisions of the Declaration, the Articles or these By-Laws which relate to time limitations shall not, in and of itself, invalidate the act done or performed. Any such failure shall be waived if it is not objected to by a Member of the Association within ten (10) days after the Member is notified, or becomes aware, of the failure. Furthermore, if such failure occurs at a general or special meeting, the failure shall be waived as to all Members who received notice of the meeting or appeared and failed to object to such failure at the meeting.

> BRIDLEWOOD RANCHES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., A Florida-not-for-profit corporation

Attest:

Secretary

By:

Barbara B. Nolan, President

Exhibit "E" Joinder and Consent by Mortgagee

JOINDER AND CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE

This Joinder and Consent to Recordation of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Bridlewood Ranches ("Joinder and Consent") is made this 157 day of March, 2005, by Banknorth, N.A., a national banking association, whose post office address is 99 West Street, Pittsfield, MA 01201.

Banknorth hereby certifies that it is the holder of the mortgage and related loan documents described below (collectively, the "Mortgage") encumbering the Property described in the foregoing Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for (the "Declaration"), by the execution hereof, hereby joins into and consents to the placing of the Declaration on the Property described in Exhibit "A" to the Declaration, and further covenants and agrees that the lien of the Security Documents is and shall be subordinate to the Declaration as if the Declaration had been executed and recorded prior to execution, delivery or recordation of the Security Documents.:

- 1. Mortgage and Security Agreement by FL Land Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as mortgagor, and Banknorth, N.A., a national banking association, as mortgagee, recorded in Official Records Book 514, Page 987, Public Records of Okeechobee County, Florida.
- Assignment of Rents, Leases, and Profits by FL Land Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, in favor of Banknorth, N.A., a national banking association, recorded in Official Records Book 541, Page 1013, Public Records of Okeechobee County, Florida.
- 3. Collateral Assignment of Developer's Rights, Construction Contracts, Permits, Licenses, Warranties, Plans, Drawings, Agreements of Sale and Deposits, by FL Land Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, in favor of Banknorth, N.A., a national banking association, recorded in Official Records Book 541, Page 1019, Public Records of Okeechobee County, Florida.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Banknorth, N.A., a national banking association has caused these presents to be executed in its name and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed by its proper officers hereunto duly authorized, the day and year first above written.

Witnesses:

Pfint Name JUNTH A. THOMAS

Banknorth, N.A., a national banking association

Jay (Jullin St. V.) Jarome Anderson, Senior Vice-president

STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS)	
COUNTY OF BONDShire) ss:	
Sworn to and subscribed before me t Senior Vice-president of Banknorth, N.A., a na personally known to me or has produced	his 15th day of March, 2005, by Jerome Anderson, as tional banking association, on behalf of the Bank. He is(type of identification) as identification. NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS
	(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) LISA M. LAWLER Notary Public Commonwealth of Massachusetts My Commission Expires Apr 22, 2005

EXHIBIT "F"



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 47-00656-P ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT NO. DATE ISSUED:

FEBRUARY 9, 2005

Rev. 08/95

PERMITTEE: FL LAND PARTNERS, LLC (BRIDLEWOOD RANCHES)

665 SIMONDS ROAD,

01267 WILLIAMSTOWN, MA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM TO SERVE A 485 ACRE PROJECT

KNOWN AS BRIDLEWOOD RANCHES.

PROJECT LOCATION:

OKEECHOBEE COUNTY,

SECTION 25 TWP 38S RGE 36E

PERMIT DURATION:

See Special Condition No:1. See attached Rule 40E-4.321, Florida Administrative Code.

040507-7, dated April 26, 2004. Permittee agrees to hold and save the This Permit is issued pursuant to Application No. South Florida Water Management District and its successors harmless from any and all damages, claims or liabilities which may arise by reason of the construction, operation, maintenance or use of activities authorized by this Permit. This Permit is issued under the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and the Operating Agreement Concerning Regulation Under Part IV, provisions of Chapter 373, Part IV Chapter 373 F.S., between South Florida Water Management District and the Department of Environmental Protection. Issuance of this Permit constitutes certification of compliance with state water quality standards where neccessary pursuant to Section 401, Public Law 92-500, 33 USC Section 1341, unless this Permit is issued pursuant to the net improvement provisions of Subsections 373.414(1)(b), F.S., or as otherwise stated herein.

This Permit may be transferred pursuant to the appropriate provisions of Chapter 373, F.S. and Sections 40E-1.6107(1) and (2), and 40E-4.351(1), (2), and (4), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). This Permit may be revered, suspended, or modified at any time pursuant to the appropriate provisions of Chapter 373, F.S. and Sections 40E-4.351(1), (2), and (4), F.A.C.

set forth in Rule 40E-4.381, F.A.C., unless waived or modified by the General Conditions This Permit shall be subject to the Environmental Resource Permit Staff Review Summary of the Application, including Governing Board. The Application, and the all conditions, and all plans and specifications incorporated by reference, are a part of this Permit. All activities authorized by this Permit shall be implemented as set forth in the plans, specifications, and performance criteria as set forth and incorporated in the Environmental Resource Permit Staff Review Summary. Within 30 days after completion of construction of the permitted activity, the Permittee shall submit a written statement of completion and certification by a registered professional engineer or other appropriate individual, pursuant to the appropriate provisions of Chapter 373, F.S. and Sections 40E-4.361 and 40E-4.381, F.A.C.

In the event the property is sold or otherwise conveyed, the Permittee will remain liable for compliance with this Permit until transfer is approved by the District pursuant to Rule 40E-1.6107, F.A.C.

SPECIAL AND GENERAL CONDITIONS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

SEE PAGES

2 - 10 OF 13

(25 SPECIAL CONDITIONS).

SEE PAGES

11 - 13 OF 13

(19 GENERAL CONDITIONS).

FILED WITH THE CLERK OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY:

ELIZABETH VEGUILLA

DEPUTY CLERK

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY:

RACHEL RICH

DISTRICT CLERK

PAGE 1 OF 13

15

00559

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P

PAGE 2 OF 13

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

- 1. The construction phase of this permit shall expire on February 9, 2010.
- 2. Operation of the surface water management system shall be the responsibility of Bridlewood Ranches property owner assoication, Inc. Within one year of permit issuance or concurrent with the engineering certification of construction completion, whichever comes first, the permittee shall submit a copy of the recorded deed restrictions, a copy of the filed articles of incorporation, and a copy of the certificate of incorporation for the association.
- Discharge Facilities:

Basin: B1

1-.4' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 43.6' NGVD.

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 43' NGVD.

47 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 45.2' NGVD.

Receiving body : East by-pass ditch Control elev : 42.8 feet NGVD.

Basin: B2

1-.3' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 42.2' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 41.5' NGVD.

25 LF of 24" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 44' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 13 Control elev: 41.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: B3

1-.6' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 39.8' NGVD. 1-5" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 39' NGVD. 34 LF of 24" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 41.1' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland No. 7 Control elev: 39 feet NGVD.

Basin: B4

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38.3' NGVD. 1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 37.5' NGVD. 35 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 40' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 15 Control elev: 37.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: B5, Structure: 38

1-.3' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 37' NGVD. 28 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1-' W X ' L drop inlet with crest at elev. 40.5' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 16

PAGE 3 OF 13

Control elev: 37 feet NGVD.

Basin: B5, Structure: 40

1-.3' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38.6' NGVD.

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 37' NGVD.

50 LF of 18' dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39.2' NGVD.

Receiving body : Berman Road Ditch

Control elev: 37 feet NGVD.

Basin: B6

1-.8' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 36.1' NGVD.

1-3' dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35.5' NGVD.

48 LF of 18' dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38.2' NGVD.

Receiving body : Berman Road Ditch

Control elev: 35.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: B7

1-.83' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 3.8' NGVD.

1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.7' NGVD.

139 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39' NGVD.

Receiving body : Basin 6

Control elev: 36.7 feet NGVD.

Basin: B8

1-.5' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 40.2' NGVD.

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 39.5' NGVD.

37 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 41.5' NGVD.

Receiving body : Wetland 13

Control elev: 39.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: B9

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38.9' NGVD.

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 37.5' NGVD.

12 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 40.3' NGVD.

Receiving body: Road swale to Wetland 10

Control elev: 37.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: B10

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38.6' NGVD.

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 38' NGVD.

30 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 40.5' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 25

Control elev: 38 feet NGVD.

OR BK 00559 PG 057

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P

PAGE 4 OF 13

Basin: B11

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 36.9' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.1' NGVD. 48 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 17 Control elev: 36.1 feet NGVD.

Basin: B12

1-.7' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 37.1' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.1' NGVD. 36 LF of 18' dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 37.4' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 19 Control elev: 35.8 feet NGVD.

Basin: B13

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 37.1' NGVD. 1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.2' NGVD. 41 LF of 24' dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38.8' NGVD.

Receiving body: Basin 12 Control elev: 36 feet NGVD.

Basin: B14

1-.8' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38.1' NGVD.
1-4.5' dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 37.2' NGVD.
28 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.
1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 15 Control elev: 37 feet NGVD.

Basin: B15

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 37.2' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.2' NGVD. 28 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38.5' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 7 Control elev: 36.2 feet NGVD.

Basin: B16

1-4.6' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 36.7' NGVD. 1-3' dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35.7' NGVD. 31 LF of 48" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 7 Control elev: 35.7 feet NGVD.

Basin: B17

PAGE 5 OF 13

1-4.6' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 37.3' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.5' NGVD. 30 LF of 48" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.

1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39' NGVD.

Receiving body : Wetland 11 Control elev : 36 feet NGVD.

Basin: B18

1-.6' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 35.8' NGVD. 1-5.5" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35' NGVD. 62 LF of 36" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 37.7' NGVD.

Receiving body: Lake 5 - B19 Control elev: 34.6 feet NGVD.

Basin: B19

1-5.7' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 35' NGVD.
1-1.5' W X 1.1' H RECTANGULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 34.1' NGVD.
43 LF of 48" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.
1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 35.7' NGVD.

Receiving body : Historic Ditch - Amnistad Control elev : 33.4 feet NGVD.

Basin: B20, Structure: 18

1-.4' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 35.7' NGVD.
1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35' NGVD.
37 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.
1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 37.8' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 21 Control elev: 35 feet NGVD.

Basin: B20, Structure: 23

1-.6' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 35.7' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35' NGVD. 59 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 37.5' NGVD.

Receiving body: Berman Road Ditch Control elev: 35 feet NGVD.

Basin: B21

1-.5' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 34.9' NGVD. 1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 34' NGVD. 56 LF of 18' dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 37.9' NGVD.

Receiving body : Berman Road/Nubbin Slough Ditch Control elev : 34 feet NGVD.

Basin: B22

1-6' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 36.2' NGVD.

PAGE 6 OF 13

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35.5' NGVD. 46 LF of 48" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38' NGVD.

Receiving body: Basin 19 - Lake 5 Control elev: 35.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: B23

1-.2' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 39.3' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 38' NGVD. 18 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 40.5' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 7 H Control elev: 38 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND7H

72 LF of 24' dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 7 L Control elev: 38 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND7L

1-5' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 36' NGVD. 1-6' dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35.7' NGVD. 70 LF of 48" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "D" inlet with crest at elev. 37.3' NGVD.

Receiving body: Basin 22 Control elev: 35.7 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND11

1-4.5' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 37.3' NGVD. 1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.5' NGVD. 47 LF of 48" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38' NGVD.

Receiving body: Basin 16 Control elev: 36.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND13

1-1.25' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 40.1' NGVD. 1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 39.5' NGVD. 70 LF of 24" dia. ARCH CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 40.2' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 10 via road swale Control elev: 38.5 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND15

1-3.5' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38.2' NGVD. 1-6" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 37' NGVD. 83 LF of 48" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 39' NGVD.

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P PAGE 7 OF 13

Receiving body: Basin 17 Control elev: 37 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND16

1-.4' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 38' NGVD.
1-5" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 36.9' NGVD.
50 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.
1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38.4' NGVD.

Receiving body: Basin 7 Control elev: 37 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND19

1-1' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 36.6' NGVD. 1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 35.8' NGVD. 28 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert. 1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 38' NGVD.

Receiving body: Wetland 20 Control elev: 35.8 feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND21

1-.4' WIDE SHARP CRESTED weir with crest at elev. 35.4' NGVD.
1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 34.4' NGVD.
30 LF of 18" dia. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE culvert.
1- FDOT Type "E" inlet with crest at elev. 37' NGVD.

Receiving body : Berman Rd. via Amnistad Ditch Control elev : 34.4 feet NGVD.

- 4. The permittee shall be responsible for the correction of any erosion, shoaling or water quality problems that result from the construction or operation of the surface water management system.
- 5. Measures shall be taken during construction to insure that sedimentation and/or turbidity violations do not occur in the receiving water.
- 6. The District reserves the right to require that additional water quality treatment methods be incorporated into the drainage system if such measures are shown to be necessary.
- 7. Lake side slopes shall be no steeper than 4:1 (horizontal:vertical) to a depth of two feet below the control elevation. Side slopes shall be nurtured or planted from 2 feet below to 1 foot above control elevation to insure vegetative growth, unless shown on the plans.
- 8. Facilities other than those stated herein shall not be constructed without approved modification of this permit.
- 9. A stable, permanent and accessible elevation reference shall be established on or within one hundred (100) feet of all permitted discharge structures no later that the submission of the certification report. The location of the elevation reference must be noted on or with the certification report.
- 10. The permittee shall provide routine maintenance of all of the components of the surface water management system in order to remove all trapped sediments/debris. All materials shall be properly disposed of as required by law. Failure to properly maintain the system may result in adverse flooding conditions.

feet

NGVD.

This permit is issued based on the applicant's submitted information which reasonably demonstrates that adverse water resource related impacts will not be caused by the completed permit activity. Should any adverse impacts caused by the completed surface water management system occur, the District will require the permittee to provide appropriate mitigation to the District or other impacted party. The District will require the permittee to modify the surface water management system, if necessary, to eliminate the cause of the adverse impacts.

building floor elevation: BASIN: Minimum 12. BASIN: B2 - 46.00 feet NGVD.

- 42.50 feet NGVD.

BASIN: B6 - 38.40 feet NGVD. 40.10 feet NGVD.

BASIN: Bl0 - 41.00 feet NGVD. 39.50 feet NGVD.

BASIN: B14 - 40.00 feet NGVD. 39.30 feet NGVD.

BASIN: B18 - 38.20 feet NGVD. 37.30 feet NGVD.

BASIN: B22 - 38.10 feet NGVD. B23 - 43.00 feet NGVD.

Basin: road crown elevation: 13. Minimum Basin: B2 - 44.70 feet NGVD.

NGVD.

Basin: B5 - feet NGVD.

Basin: B7 - feet NGVD.

feet NGVD.

Basin: B10 - 39.70 feet NGVD.

39.50 feet NGVD.

Basin: B14 - 39.50 feet NGVD.

Basin: B17 - 39.20 feet NGVD.

37.00 feet NGVD.

Basin: B21 - 37.00 feet NGVD. NGVD.

Basin: WTLND7H - feet NGVD.

feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND9 - feet NGVD.

feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND13 - feet NGVD.

- feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND19 - feet NGVD.

WTLND20 - feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND25 - feet NGVD.

14. Activities associated with the implementation of the mitigation, monitoring and maintenance plan(s) shall be completed in accordance with the work schedule attached as Exhibit 3.6. Any deviation from these time frames will require prior approval from the District's Environmental Resource Compliance staff. Such requests must be made in writing and shall include (1) reason for the change, (2) proposed start/finish and/or completion dates; and (3) progress report on the status of the project development or mitigation effort. 2883

В1 BASIN: B3 BASIN: B4 - 41.00 feet NGVD. 40.20 feet NGVD. BASIN: B5 -BASIN: B7 -42.10 feet NGVD.

46.60

BASIN: B8 -40.70 feet NGVD. BASIN: Bl1 -

38.60 feet NGVD. BASIN: B12 -40.00 feet NGVD. BASIN: B13 -BASIN: B15 -

39.30 feet NGVD. BASIN: B16 -39.30 feet NGVD. BASIN: B17 -BASIN: B19

BASIN: B20 - 38.00 feet NGVD. 37.80 feet NGVD. BASIN: B21 -BASIN: À

45.00 NGVD. feet В1 Basin: B3 - feet

Basin: B4 - feet NGVD. Basin: B6 - feet NGVD.

Basin: B8 - Basin: B8 - Feet NGVD. Basin: B11 -

Basin: B12 - 38.40 feet NGVD. - 38.40 feet NGVD. B13

Basin: B15 - 40.30 feet Basin: B16 - 39.50 feet NGVD.

Basin: B18 -

37.50 feet NGVD. Basin: B19 -- 37.00 feet NGVD. Basin: Basin: B22 - 37.50 feet

42.00 feet NGVD. Basin: B23 -Basin: WTLND7L -

Basin: WTLND8 - feet NGVD. Basin: WTLND10 -

Basin: WTLND11 - feet NGVD.

Basin: WTLND15 Basin: WTLND16 - feet NGVD.

Basin:

Basin: WTLND21 - feet NGVD. NGVD. feet Basin: WTLND23 -

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P

PAGE 9 OF 13

15. A maintenance program shall be implemented in accordance with Exhibit 3.5A-3.5M for the onsite preserved wetland areas within the conservation easement area on a regular basis to ensure the integrity and viability of the conservation areas as permitted. Maintenance shall be conducted in perpetuity to ensure that the conservation areas are maintained free from Category 1 exotic vegetation (as defined by the Florida Exotic Pest Plant Council at the time of permit issuance) immediately following a maintenance activity. Coverage of exotic and nuisance plant species shall not exceed 5% of total cover between maintenance activities. In addition, the permittee shall manage the conservation areas such that exotic/nuisance plant species do not dominate any one section of those areas.

- 16. Silt fencing shall be installed at the limits of construction to protect all of the preserve areas from silt and sediment deposition during the construction of the project. A floating turbidity barrier shall be installed during the construction of the final discharge structure to the adjacent water body. The silt fencing and the turbidity barrier shall be installed in accordance with "Florida Land Development Manual" Chapter 6 "Stormwater and Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices for Developing Areas" and Exhibit 2. The sediment controls shall be installed prior to the commencement of any clearing or construction and the installation must be inspected by the District's Environmental Resource Compliance staff. The silt fencing and turbidity barriers shall remain in place and be maintained in good functional condition until all adjacent construction activities have been completed and all fill slopes have been stabilized. Upon completion of the project and the stabilization of the fill, the permittee shall contact the District's Environmental Resource Compliance staff the inspect the site and approve the removal of the silt fencing and turbidity barriers.
- 17. An average 25' wide, minimum 15', buffer of undisturbed upland vegetation shall be maintained between the proposed development and existing wetlands. Buffers shall be staked and roped and District environmental staff notified for inspection prior to clearing.
- 18. Endangered species, threatened species and/or species of special concern have been observed onsite and/or the project contains suitable habitat for these species. It shall be the permittee's responsibility to coordinate with the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission and/or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service for appropriate guidance, recommendations and/or necessary permits to avoid impacts to listed species.
- 19. A monitoring program shall be implemented in accordance with Exhibit 3.5A-3.5M. The monitoring program shall extend for a period of 5 years with annual reports submitted to District staff. At the end of the first monitoring period the mitigation area shall contain an 50% survival of planted vegetation. The 80% survival rate shall be maintained throughout the remainder of the monitoring program, with replanting as necessary. If native wetland, transitional, and upland species do not achieve a 50% coverage for the first year and an 80% coverage for the second year of the monitoring program, native species shall be planted in accordance with the maintenance program. At the end of the 5 year monitoring program the mentire mitigation area shall contain an 80% survival of planted vegetation and an 80% coverage of desirable obligate and facultative wetland species.
- 20. The District reserves the right to require remedial measures to be taken by the permittee if monitoring or other information demonstrates that adverse impacts to consite or offsite wetlands, upland conservation areas or buffers, or other surface waters have occurred due to project related activities.
- 21. A mitigation program for Bridlewood Ranches shall be implemented in accordance with Exhibit 3.5A-3.5M. The permittee shall enhance 17.15 acres of wetlands and preserve a total of 94.24 acres of wetlands.
- 22. Prior to the commencement of construction within wetlands, the permittee shall provide a surety bond/letter of credit in the amount of \$44,924 as financial

PAGE 10 OF 13

assurance that the mitigation work will be constructed as permitted. In the event that the permittee does not complete the obligations of this permit, the District may file suit against the surety company and/or the permittee to recover funds necessary to complete the permitted mitigation obligations, as provided for in the surety bond. The bond cannot be revoked, terminated or cancelled without prior written approval by the District, which will be conditioned upon the permittee providing an alternate financial responsibility mechanism meeting the requirements of Section 4.3.7 (including Subsections) of the Basis of Review.

23. Prior to the commencement of construction resulting in wetland impacts and in accordance with the work schedule in Exhibit 3.6, the permittee shall submit two certified copies of the recorded conservation easement for the mitigation area and associated buffers. The data should also be supplied in a digital CAD (.dxf) or GIS (ESRI Coverage) format. The files should be in the Florida State Plane coordinate system, East Zone (3601) with a data datum of NAD83, HARN with the map units in feet. This data should reside on a CD or floppy disk and be submitted to the District's Environmental Resource Compliance Division in the service area office where the application was submitted.

The recorded easement shall be in substantial conformance with Exhibit 3.7. Any proposed modifications to the approved form must receive prior written consent from the District. The easement must be free of encumbrances or interests in the easement which the District determines are contrary to the intent of the easement. In the event it is later determined that there are encumbrances or interests in the easement which the District determines are contrary to the intent of the easement, the permittee shall be required to provide release or subordination of such encumbrances or interests.

24. Wetland preservation/mitigation areas, and upland buffer zones shall be dedicated as conservation and common areas in the Bridlewood Ranches Homeowner Association documents as well as on the recorded plat. Restrictions for use of the conservation /common areas shall stipulate:

The wetland preservation/mitigation areas and upland buffer zones are hereby dedicated as conservation and common areas. The conservation/common areas shall be the perpetual responsibility of the Bridlewood Ranches Homeowner Association and may in no way be altered from their natural or permitted state as documented in Exhibit 3.9, with the exception of permitted restoration activities. Activities prohibited within the conservation areas include, but are not limited to: construction or placing soil or other substances such as trash; removal or destruction of trees, shrubs, or other vegetation — with the exception of exotic/nuisance vegetation removal; excavation, dredging, or removal of soil material; diking or fencing; and any other activities detrimental to drainage, flood control, water conservation, erosion control, or fish and wildlife habitat conservation or preservation.

Copies of recorded documents shall be submitted to the District's Environmental Resource Compliance staff concurrently with engineering certification of construction completion.

25. Permanent physical markers designating the preserve status of the wetland preservation areas and buffer zones shall be constructed by the permittee and placed at straight line intervals of 100' and/or at tangents in the conservation area boundary. These markers shall be maintained in perpetuity.

3K 00559 PG 058

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P

PAGE 11 OF 13

GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. All activities authorized by this permit shall be implemented as set forth in the plans, specifications and performance criteria as approved by this permit. Any deviation from the permitted activity and the conditions for undertaking that activity shall constitute a violation of this permit and Part IV, Chapter 373. F.S.

- 2. This permit or a copy thereof, complete with all conditions, attachments, exhibits, and modifications shall be kept at the work site of the permitted activity. The complete permit shall be available for review at the work site upon request by District staff. The permittee shall require the contractor to review the complete permit prior to commencement of the activity authorized by this permit.
- Activities approved by this permit shall be conducted in a manner which does not cause violations of State water quality standards. The permittee shall implement best management practices for erosion and pollution control to prevent violation of State water quality standards. Temporary erosion control shall be implemented prior to and during construction, and permanent control measures shall be completed within 7 days of any construction activity. Turbidity barriers shall be installed and maintained at all locations where the possibility of transferring suspended solids into the Turbidity barriers shall receiving waterbody exists due to the permitted work. remain in place at all locations until construction is completed and soils are stabilized and vegetation has been established. All practices shall be in accordance with the guidelines and specifications described in Chapter 6 of the Florida Land Development Manual; A Guide to Sound Land and Water Management (Department of Environmental Regulation, 1988), incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-4.091, F.A.C. unless a project-specific erosion and sediment control plan is approved as part of Thereafter the permittee shall be responsible for the removal of the the permit. barriers. The permittee shall correct any erosion or shoaling that causes adverse impacts to the water resources.
- 4. The permittee shall notify the District of the anticipated construction start date within 30 days of the date that this permit is issued. At least 48 hours prior to commencement of activity authorized by this permit, the permittee shall submit to the District an Environmental Resource Permit Construction Commencement Notice Form Number 0960 indicating the actual start date and the expected construction completion date.
- 5. When the duration of construction will exceed one year, the permittee shall submit construction status reports to the District on an annual basis utilizing an annual status report form. Status report forms shall be submitted the following June of each year.
- Within 30 days after completion of construction of the permitted activity, the permitee shall submit a written statement of completion and certification by a professional engineer or other individual authorized by law, utilizing the supplied Construction Permit Management Environmental Resource/Surface Water Completion/Certification Form Number 0881A, or Environmental Resource/Surface Water, Management Permit Construction Completion Certification - For Projects Permitted prior to October 3, 1995 Form No. 0881B, incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-1.659, The statement of completion and certification shall be based on onsite observation of construction or review of as-built drawings for the purpose of determining if the work was completed in compliance with permitted plans and specifications. This submittal shall serve to notify the District that the system is ready for inspection. Additionally, if deviation from the approved drawings are discovered during the certification process, the certification must be accompanied by a copy of the approved permit drawings with deviations. a copy of the approved permit drawings with deviations noted. Both the original and revised specifications must be clearly shown. The plans must be clearly labeled as n "as-built" or "record" drawings. All surveyed dimensions and elevations shall be certified by a registered surveyor.

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P PAGE 12 OF 13

7. The operation phase of this permit shall not become effective: until the permittee has complied with the requirements of condition (6) above, and submitted a request for conversion of Environmental Resource Permit from Construction Phase to Operation Phase, Form No. 0920; the District determines the system to be in compliance with the permitted plans and specifications; and the entity approved by the District in accordance with Sections 9.0 and 10.0 of the Basis of Review for Environmental Resource Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, accepts responsibility for operation and maintenance of the system. The permit shall not be transferred to such approved operation and maintenance entity until the operation phase of the permit becomes effective. Following inspection and approval of the permitted system by the District, the permittee shall initiate transfer of the permit to the approved responsible operating entity if different from the permittee. Until the permit is transferred pursuant to Section 40E-1.6107, F.A.C., the permittee shall be liable for compliance with the terms of the permit.

- 8. Each phase or independent portion of the permitted system must be completed in accordance with the permitted plans and permit conditions prior to the initiation of the permitted use of site infrastructure located within the area served by that portion or phase of the system. Each phase or independent portion of the system must be completed in accordance with the permitted plans and permit conditions prior to transfer of responsibility for operation and maintenance of the phase or portion of the system to a local government or other responsible entity.
- 9. For those systems that will be operated or maintained by an entity that will require an easement or deed restriction in order to enable that entity to operate or maintain the system in conformance with this permit, such easement or deed restriction must be recorded in the public records and submitted to the District along with any other final operation and maintenance documents required by Sections 9.0 and 10.0 of the Basis of Review for Environmental Resource Permit applications within the South Florida Water Management District, prior to lot or units sales or prior to the completion of the system, whichever comes first. Other documents concerning the establishment and authority of the operating entity must be filed with the Secretary of State, county or municipal entities. Final operation and maintenance documents must be received by the District when maintenance and operation of the system is accepted by the local government entity. Failure to submit the appropriate final documents will result in the permittee remaining liable for carrying out maintenance and operation of the permitted system and any other permit conditions.
- 10. Should any other regulatory agency require changes to the permitted system, the permittee shall notify the District in writing of the changes prior to implementation so that a determination can be made whether a permit modification is required.
- 11. This permit does not eliminate the necessity to obtain any required federal, state, local and special district authorizations prior to the start of any activity approved by this permit. This permit does not convey to the permittee or create in the permittee any property right, or any interest in real property, nor does it authorize any entrance upon or activities on property which is not owned or controlled by the permittee, or convey any rights or privileges other than those specified in the permit and Chapter 40E-4 or Chapter 40E-40, F.A.C..
- 12. The permittee is hereby advised that Section 253.77, F.S. states that a person mayon not commence any excavation, construction, or other activity involving the use of sovereign or other lands of the State, the title to which is vested in the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund without obtaining the required lease, license, easement, or other form of consent authorizing the proposed use. Therefore, the permittee is responsible for obtaining any necessary authorizations from the Board of Trustees prior to commencing activity on sovereignty lands or other state—U owned lands.
- 13. The permittee must obtain a Water Use permit prior to construction dewatering, unless the work qualifies for a general permit pursuant to Subsection 40E-20.302(3), F.A.C., also known as the "No Notice" Rule.

0587

PERMIT NO: 47-00656-P

PAGE 13 OF 13

14. The permittee shall hold and save the District harmless from any and all damages, claims, or liabilities which may arise by reason of the construction, alteration, operation, maintenance, removal, abandonment or use of any system authorized by the permit.

- 15. Any delineation of the extent of a wetland or other surface water submitted as part of the permit application, including plans or other supporting documentation, shall not be considered binding, unless a specific condition of this permit or a formal determination under Section 373.421(2), F.S., provides otherwise.
- 16. The permittee shall notify the District in writing within 30 days of any sale, conveyance, or other transfer of ownership or control of a permitted system or the real property on which the permitted system is located. All transfers of ownership or transfers of a permit are subject to the requirements of Rules 40E-1.6105 and 40E-1.6107, F.A.C.. The permittee transferring the permit shall remain liable for corrective actions that may be required as a result of any violations prior to the sale, conveyance or other transfer of the system.
- 17. Upon reasonable notice to the permittee, District authorized staff with proper identification shall have permission to enter, inspect, sample and test the system to insure conformity with the plans and specifications approved by the permit.
- 18. If historical or archaeological artifacts are discovered at any time on the project site, the permittee shall immediately notify the appropriate District service center.
- 19. The permittee shall immediately notify the District in writing of any previously submitted information that is later discovered to be inaccurate.

EXHIBIT "G"

Animal Waste Management Plan For Bridlewood Ranches Properties Okeechobee County, Florida

I. PURPOSE:

This plan was prepared to provide a framework of management practices for limiting phosphorous and other nutrient runoff into receiving waters (Lake Okeechobee.) The intent of this document is to prohibit the placement, spreading or improper storage of animal waste collected in high-density livestock facilities. It is not the intent of this document to require any collection, storage or removal of naturally deposited animal waste within pasture areas of the development, nor to prohibit the proper storage and spreading of livestock waste generated in passive recreational livestock activities or uses.

II. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR LIVESTOCK WASTE:

The Bridlewood Ranches Property Owners Association (POA) acknowledges the importance of water quality within the drainage basin. To that end, the POA will undertake Best Management Practices for limiting nutrient runoff from the development.

A. Livestock Density Criteria.

- 1. Maximum livestock density criteria are set forth in "Appendix 1", attached. Densities up to the established limitations shall constitute a passive recreational activity or use. Maximum densities have been established to meet the intent of the Lake Okeechobee Protection Act.
- 2. Densities greater than the limitations established in subsection A(1), as shown in Appendix 1 attached, shall constitute a high-density use. Parcels in this category shall adhere to all requirements of this document, and specifically with subsection E, below.
- 3. Density criteria shall be based on a calculated 30-day average of animals per lot.
- 4. The POA shall have the authority to monitor livestock densities for the purpose of enforcement of the requirements of this document.

B. Management of Livestock Waste.

1. Livestock waste shall be placed or stored only in:

- a. a livestock waste storage area meeting the requirements of subsection C(4), below; or
- b. a composting area meeting the requirements of subsection C(4).
- 2. Livestock waste shall be land-spread according to Best Management Practices:
 - a. No long-term stockpiling or storage of livestock waste material shall be allowed except that which meets the requirements of subsection C, below.
 - b. No spreading or depositing of livestock waste material shall be permitted to occur in wetlands (including buffers) or other surface waters.
 - c. No spreading or depositing of livestock waste material shall be permitted to occur adjacent to ditches, swales or other drainage flow-ways.
 - d. Livestock waste shall be evenly spread in pasture areas so as to avoid high concentrations of waste material in any one area.
 - e. Each parcel owner shall be responsible for determination of pasture nutrient requirements. Land-spreading of livestock waste material in excess of determined pasture nutrient requirements shall be prohibited.
 - f. At no time shall off-site livestock waste material be imported for spreading or storage within Suncreek Ranch.
- 3. Parcels containing cattle uses shall be encouraged to adhere to applicable sections of "Water Quality Best Management Practices for Cow/Calf Operations in Florida, June 1999", prepared by the Florida Cattleman's Association, et. al. A copy of this document shall be made available to each parcel owner by the POA.
- 4. The POA shall have the authority to enforce compliance with the requirements of this section.
- C. Livestock Waste Storage Areas.
 - 1. Parcels exceeding the livestock density limitations set forth in subsection A(1), as shown in Appendix 1 attached, shall adhere to the waste storage requirements set forth in this section.
 - 2. Parcels not exceeding the livestock density limitations set forth in subsection A(1), but which practice storage and/or composting of waste material prior to land application, shall adhere to the waste storage requirements set forth in this section.
 - 3. Each applicable livestock facility shall provide a waste storage area for livestock waste, meeting the requirements of subsection C(4), below.

- 4. Criteria for Storage Structures: Livestock waste storage areas and composting areas shall be constructed so that no rainfall is allowed to enter and so that no liquid is released.
- 5. The POA shall have the authority to enforce compliance with the requirements of this section.

D. Livestock Waste Spreading.

- 1. Parcels which do not exceed the livestock density limitations set forth in subsection A(1), as shown in Appendix 1 attached, shall be permitted to land-spread animal waste material in accordance with Best Management Practices established in subsection B(2) and B(3).
- 2. Parcels which exceed the livestock density limitation set forth in subsection A(1) shall not be permitted to land-spread animal waste material, but shall legally dispose of waste material off-site according to the requirements of subsection E, below.

E. Livestock Waste Hauling.

- 1. Parcels exceeding the livestock density limitation set forth in subsection A(1), as shown in Appendix 1 attached) shall adhere to the waste hauling requirements set forth in this section.
- 2. All livestock waste shall be removed from livestock facilities by either a commercial livestock waste hauler or a livestock waste self-hauler.
- 3. Commercial livestock waste haulers and livestock waste self-haulers shall not deposit livestock waste within the boundaries of the development, or off-site except to a facility permitted to accept livestock waste.
- 4. The POA shall have the authority to enforce compliance with the requirements of this section.

OR BK 00559 PG 0592

Appendix 1 Livestock Density Criteria

	Parcel 1			Parcel 4			Parcel 7	
Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
0	8	8	0	2	2	0	2	2
1	7	8	1	1	2	1	2	3
2	7	9	2	1	3	2	1	3
3	6	9	3	0	3	3	0	3
4	5	9						
5	4	9		Parcel 5			Parcel 8	
6	4	10	Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
7	3	10	0	9	9	0	4	4
8	2	10	1	8	9	1	3	4
9	2	11	2	7	9	2	3	5
10	1	11	3	6	9	3	2	5
11	1	12	4	6	10	4	2	6
12	0	12	5	5	10	5	1	6
			6	5	11	6	0	6
	Parcel 2		7	4	11			
Horses	Cows	Total	8	3	11		Parcel 9	
0	5	5	9	3	12	Horses	Cows	Total
1	4	5	10	2	12	0	4	4
2	3	5	11	2	13	1	3	4
3	3	6	12	1	13	2	3	5
4	2	6	13	0	13	3	2	5
5	2	7				4	1	5
6	1	7		Parcel 6		5	1	6
7	0	7	Horses	Cows	Total	6	0	6
			0	4	4			
			1	3	4		Parcel 10	
	Parcel 3		2	3	5	Horses	Cows	Total
Horses	Cows	Total	3	2	5	0	4	4
0	2	2	4	2	6	1	3	4
1	2	3	5	1	6	2	3	5
2	1	3	6	0	6	3	2	5
3	0	3				4	1	5
						5	1	6
						6	0	6

OR BK 00559 PG 0593

Appendix 1 (continued) Livestock Density Criteria

	Parcel 11			Parcel 14			Parcel 18	
Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
0	4	4	0	2	2	0	4	4
1	3	4	1	2	3	1	4	5
2	3	5	2	1	3	2	3	5
3	2	5	3	0	3	3	2	5
4	1	5				4	2	6
5	1	6		Parcel 15		5	1	6
6	0	6	Horses	Cows	Total	6	1	7
			0	2	2	7	0	7
	Parcel 12		1	2	3			
Horses	Cows	Total	2	1	3		Parcel 19	
0	4	4	3	0	3	Horses	Cows	Total
1	3	4				0	4	4
2	3	5		Parcel 16		1	3	4
3	2	5	Horses	Cows	Total	2	3	5
4	2	6	0	2	2	3	2	5
5	1	6	1	2	3	4	2	6
6	0	6	2	1	3	5	1	6
			3	0	3	6	0	6
	Parcel 13							
Horses	Cows	Total		Parcel 17			Parcel 20	
0	8	8	Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
1	7	8	0	4	4	0	4	4
2	7	9	1	3	4	1	3	4
3	6	9	2	3	5	2	3	5
4	5	9	3	2	5	3	2	5
5	5	10	4	2	6	4	2	6
6	4	10	5	1	6	5	1	6
7	3	10	6	0	6	6	0	6
8	3	11						
9	2	11						
10	2	12						
11	1	12						

12

12

Appendix 1 (continued) Livestock Density Criteria

	Parcel 21			Parcel 26			Parcel 29	
Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
0	4	4	0	2	2	0	4	4
1	3	4	1	2	3	1	3	4
2	3	5	2	1	3	2	3	5
3 .	2	5	3	0	3	3	2	5
4	1	5				4	1	5
5	1	6		Parcel 27		5	1	6
6	0	6	Horses	Cows	Total	6	0	6
			0	9	9			
	Parcel 22		1	8	9		Parcel 30	
Horses	Cows	Total	2	7	9	Horses	Cows	Total
0	2	2	3	7	10	0	4	4
1	2	3	4	6	10	1	3	4
2	1	3	5	6	11	2	3	5
3	0	3	6	5	11	3	2	5
			7	4	11	4	1	5
	Parcel 23		8	3	11	5	1	6
Horses	Cows	Total	9	2	11	6	0	6
0	2	2	10	2	12			
1	2	3	11	1	12		Parcel 31	
2	1	3	12	1	13	Horses	Cows	Total
3	0	3	13	0	13	0	4	4
						1	3	4
	Parcel 24			Parcel 28		2	3	5
Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total	3	2	5
0	2	2	0	4	4	4	1	5
1	2	3	1	4	5	5	1	6
2	1	3	2	3	5	6	0	6
3	0	3	3	2	5			
			4	2	6		Parcel 32	
	Parcel 25		5	1	6	Horses	Cows	Total
Horses	Cows	Total	6	1	7	0	4	4
0	3	3	7	0	7	1	3	4
1	2	3				2	3	5
2	1	3				3	2	5
3	1	4				4	1	5
4	0	4				5	1	6
						6	0	6

07 07 000009 PG 050

Appendix 1 (continued) Livestock Density Criteria

	Parcel 33			Parcel 37			Parcel 41	
Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
0	4	4	0	4	4	0	2	2
1	3	4	1	4	5	1	2	3
2	3	5	2	3	5	2	1	3
3	2	5	3	2	5	3	0	3
4	2	6	4	2	6			
5	1	6	5	1	6		Parcel 42	
6	0	6	6	1	7	Horses	Cows	Total
			7	0	7	0	3	3
	Parcel 34					1	3	4
Horses	Cows	Total		Parcel 38		2	2	4
0	2	2	Horses	Cows	Total	3	2	5
1	2	3	0	2	2	4	1	5
2	1	3	1	2	3	5	0	5
3	0	3	2	1	3			
			3	0	3		Parcel 43	
	Parcel 35					Horses	Cows	Total
Horses	Cows	Total		Parcel 39		0	8	8
0	4	4	Horses	Cows	Total	1	7	8
1	3	4	0	2	2	2	7	9
2	3	5	1	2	3	3	6	9
3	2	5	2	1	3	4	6	10
4	2	6	3	0	3	5	5	10
5	1	6				6	4	10
6	1	7		Parcel 40		7	4	11
			Horses	Cows	Total	8	3	11
	Parcel 36		0	4	4	9	2	11
Horses	Cows	Total	1	3	4	10	1	11
0	4	4	2	3	5	11	1	12
1	3	4	3	2	5	12	0	12
2	3	5	4	1	5			
3	2	5	5	1	6			
4	2	6	6	0	6			
5	1	6						
6	1	7						

OR BK 00559 PG 0596

Appendix 1 (continued) Livestock Density Criteria

	Parcel 44			Parcel 48	
Horses	Cows	Total	Horses	Cows	Total
0	5	5	0	2	2
1	4	5	1	2	3
2	3	5	2	1	3
3	3	6	3	0	3
4	2	6			
5	1	6			
6	1	7			
7	0	7			

Parcel 45						
Horses	Cows	Total				
0	2	2				
1	2	3				
2	1	3				
3	0	3				

Parcel 46						
Horses	Cows	Total				
0	2	2				
1	2	3				
2	1	3				
3	0	3				

Parcel 47						
Horses	Cows	Total				
0	2	2				
1	2	3				
2	1	3				
3	0	3				